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STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission” or “FTC”) and four States
asserted claims under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act
(“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. 8§88 53(b) and 57b, the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud
and Abuse Prevention Act (“Telemarketing Act™), 15 U.S.C. 8§ 6101-6108, for
deceptive acts or practices that violated Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.

8 45(a), the FTC’s Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, and
various state consumer protection laws. The district court had subject matter
jurisdiction under 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 53(b), 57b, 6102(c), 6105(b), and 28 U.S.C.
8§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345, and had supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to

28 U.S.C. § 1367 over the state law claims.

This Court has jurisdiction, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1291, to review the
district court’s September 26, 2011, final judgment. Defendant-appellant Meggie
Chapman filed a timely post-judgment motion under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(e), which
was denied on November 16, 2011. Chapman filed a notice of appeal on October
26, 2011, which became effective upon the district court’s disposition of the Rule
59(e) motion pursuant to Fed. R. App. P. 4(a)(4).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES
In this case, a number of corporations and individuals engaged in an

extensive illegal telemarketing scheme, in which consumers were deceptively
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induced to purchase costly services that would supposedly enable them to obtain
“grants.” The sole appellant is defendant Meggie Chapman, who provided
extensive services to the other defendants, who made the sales in question. The
Issues presented are:

1. Whether defendant Chapman — who supplied nearly all of the grant-
related services in supposed fulfillment of the sellers’ promises to consumers, as
well as providing other assistance to those sellers — was properly found to have
provided “substantial assistance” to them, in violation of the Telemarketing Sales
Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(b).

2. Whether the district court clearly erred in finding that Chapman knew
or consciously avoided knowing that the sellers and telemarketers were deceptively
marketing their grant-related scheme.

3. Whether the district court abused its discretion when it denied
Chapman’s post-judgment motion seeking a reduction in damages.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The FTC and three States initiated this action in July 2009 to halt a wide-
spread scheme in which defendants deceptively promised individual consumers the
means to obtain grant money, including “guaranteed” government grants of up to

$25,000. D.1.! Plaintiffs alleged that the defendants had engaged in deceptive

' Record items included in the Appendix are referred to as “App.xx.”
(continued...)
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telemarketing practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.

8 45(a), the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, and various state consumer protection laws.
The Commission and the States of Kansas, Minnesota, North Carolina, and Illinois
subsequently filed an 18-count amended complaint against 16 corporate and
individual defendants (located in Kansas, North Carolina, Utah, and Arizona),
including appellant Meggie Chapman. D.216 (App. ). Chapman was charged in
one count with assisting and facilitating the Kansas defendants’ TSR violations in
violation of 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(b) by providing grant-related services to the sellers.
D.216 1178-79 (App._ ).

The district court issued a temporary restraining order (“TRO”) and
preliminary injunction enjoining the deceptive scheme by the Kansas defendants.
D.28, D.78. All defendants — except for Chapman — either defaulted, settled with
the plaintiffs, or were found liable on summary judgment. On July 26, 2011, the
court denied the parties’ cross-motions for summary judgment regarding
Chapman’s liability. D.390 (App. ).

The court held a two-day bench trial in August 2011 to resolve the claims
against Chapman, during which Chapman testified. On September 16, 2011, the

court issued its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law holding that Chapman

!(...continued)
Docket items are referred herein by their district court docket number (i.e.,
“D.xx.”). “Tr.” refers to the transcript of the trial on August 22 and 23, 2011.
“PX” refers to plaintiffs’ trial exhibits. “DX” refers to defendant’s trial exhibits.

3
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violated Section 310.3(b) of the TSR. D.422 (App.__- ). The court held that
Chapman provided substantial assistance to the Kansas defendants’ deceptive
telemarketing scheme by fulfilling nearly all the grant research, writing, and
coaching services, and providing other assistance to them. 1d. at 17-20 (App.__-
__). The court held that defendants’ egregious scheme could not have succeeded
without Chapman’s work. 1d. at 17, 19 (App. __, _ ). The court also held that
Chapman either knew or consciously avoided knowing that the Kansas defendants
engaged in deceptive practices that violated the TSR. Id. at 20-23 (App. _ - ).
On September 26, 2011, the court ordered a permanent injunction and $1,682,950
in monetary relief against Chapman based on her assistance to the Kansas
defendants from January 2008 to July 2009. D.423 (App. _); D.424 (App. ).
On October 10, 2011, Chapman filed a motion to alter or amend the judgment
under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(e), or alternatively, for remittitur, seeking a reduction in
damages. D.425 (App. __ ). The court denied that motion on November 16, 2011.
D.443 (App. _ ). This appeal followed. D.433 (App. ).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. Defendants’ deceptive grant-related telemarketing scheme

Beginning in 2007, the defendants based in Kansas began selling grant-
related services through telemarketers to consumers throughout the United States.

D.296 114.a.1-9, 18 (App. __ -, ). They initiated the scheme by mailing to



consumers millions of direct marketing pieces, including postcards, that touted the
availability of government grants to individuals, including statements such as that

the consumer was “Guaranteed a $25,000 Grant from the U.S. Government.” See,

e.g., PX 70 19 5-6, 8, 14, 17, Att. A, B, I, L (App.__ -, ., - ., =)
PX 72 115, Att. J (App.__, - ); D.296 114.a.20-22 (App.__); PX 28 12, Exh. A
(App_, ).

Custoing pee9
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Paeno, the author of the Grant Guide, through her independent work obtaining
grant funding for school districts and non-profit organizations, not individuals.
PX 103 114, 5,9 (App. __ -, ).? The Kansas defendants provided no evidence
that any individual received grant money by purchasing their grant-related
products, including the Grant Guide. See D.296 131(App._ ).

The Kansas defendants enticed consumers who purchased the Grant
Guide to purchase grant research services, the second phase of their scheme, by
misrepresenting that consumers who purchased this service were likely to receive
grant money. D.296 132 (App._ ); PX 33 15-6 (App.__). For example, GWI’s
telemarketers represented that “Grant Writers Institute has achieved a 70% success
rate with their past customers totaling more than $80 million in grant funds for
their clients.” D.296 138 (App._ ); PX 12 at 2 (App._ ); PX 72 17, Att. L p.80
(App.__, ). To promote their research services, the Kansas defendants touted
their expertise in this area and their customers’ likelihood of receiving a grant with
the defendants’ help. PX 72 {17, Att. L p.75 (App.__, ). Consumers were

charged between $800 and $1200 for defendants’ grant research services. See,

2 Paeno performed grant-related work for the Kansas defendants until
around June 2008, when she quit. PX 103 6 (App._ ); Tr. 144, 149 (App.__, ).
Paeno repudiated the Kansas defendants’ use of the Grant Guide because it was
primarily intended for use by non-profit organizations and school districts, not
individual consumers. PX 103 {14-6, 8, 10 (App.__ - )

6
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e.g., Tr. 69-70 (App.__ - ); PX 30913, Ex.2 p.5 (App.__, ); PX 3212 (App._);
PX 3397 (App. - ).?

Consumers who purchased the Kansas defendants’ Grant Guide and grant
research services were further solicited to purchase defendants’ grant writing and
grant coaching services. D.296 1133, 35 (App. _); PX 12 (App.__ - ); PX 2814
(App._ - ); PX 72 1116, 17, Att. K 14 p.73, Att. L pp.79-80 (App._ , ., - ).
The Kansas defendants misrepresented to consumers that they were guaranteed or
likely to receive grant money if they purchased these services. PX 72 {17, Att. L,
pp.79-80 (App.__-_); PX 24 195-6 (App. __-_ ).

Consumers who purchased the Kansas defendants’ grant research, writing,
or coaching services failed to receive any grant money as a result of purchasing
those services. See, e.g., PX 24, p.2-3 (App. __ - ); PX 29, p.2-3 (App. _-_);
PX 35, p.2-4 (App.__- ). The Kansas defendants were unable to substantiate the
grant success results for individuals, as they did not track whether any of their
customers ever received a grant. D.296 31 (App.__); PX 70 {8, Att. D, p.53, 126
(App.__, _); PX 721116, 19, Att. K, 14 (p.73), Att. N, 12 (p.85) (App. _, _,

__). No defendant (including Meggie Chapman) could identify any customer who

* The Kansas defendants also provided customer leads to the North Carolina
and Utah defendants who engaged in similar deceptive solicitations. D.296 {134,

40-60, 63-64, 69-83, 90 (App._ -, - ): PX 721113, 16, Att. H, K, L
(App.__-_, _, - );PX24pp.2-3 (App. __-_); PX 37 (App.__-_); PX 158
at 31, 36-37, 53-56, 61 (App._, -, -, ).



had actually received a grant as a result of purchasing any of the defendants’ grant-
related services. See, e.g., PX 150 at 153 (App._); PX 154 at 143-44 (App.__-
__). Consumers paid the Kansas defendants more than $27 million from 2007
through July 2009 for their grant-related goods and services. See D.390 at 17

(App._)

2. Chapman provided grant research, grant writing and grant
coaching services to the other defendants

Having promised their customers a means of obtaining grant money, the

defendants needed to deliver something to those customers, even if — as it turned
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Chapman received her first research request for grants for individuals from
the Kansas defendants through Lynne Paeno in November 2007,* and the volume
of requests steadily increased. Tr. 110-14 (App._ - ); DX 720 (App._); PX 150
at 47-48 (App.__- ). By approximately August 2008 — after Paeno quit the
scheme — Chapman was hired directly by the Kansas defendants to provide grant
research services, and subsequently provided grant writing and grant coaching
services, for the telemarketing scheme. Tr. 146, 319-21 (App._, - ); PX 150
at 43-45, 141-42 (App.__ -, - ): D.338 1110 (App._ ); D.296 11 17, 98, 102,
109 (App.__, - ); D.234 1151, 53 (App.__). Chapman’s grant-related work on
behalf of the Kansas defendants amounted to approximately 80-90% of her entire
business by July 2009. D.338 1128 (App. _); PX 150 at 235 (App._ ).

Chapman and her employees at MCA compiled lists of money sources
(referred to as “funding research request responses”) ostensibly available to
consumers who purchased defendants’ services. Tr. 122-123, 317 (App.__ -,
_); PX 150 at 49 (App._ ); PX 58 (App.__ - ); D.338 1112 (App._ ). Chapman
and MCA provided to the Kansas defendants many such lists of sources — often

hundreds per month — to which she claimed individual customers could apply for

* Chapman began working with Paeno on grants for educational institutions
and nonprofit organizations in 2006. Tr. 106 (App. ). Paeno subcontracted with
Chapman to write portions of the Grant Guide in September 2007, and provided a
chapter focusing on grants to individuals for a later printing of the Guide. Tr. 108-
09, 285 (App.__-_,_);PX 150 at 28-29, 31-32, 197 (App. _ -, -, _);
D.296 1192, 93 (App.__-_ ).
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(App._ ); PX 28 14, Ex. C (p.16-29) (App._ - , - ); PX 111 (App._ - ).
The Kansas defendants then provided those research results to the purchasing
customers. Tr. 143, 298 (App.__, ).

A number of the entities included as grant sources in Chapman’s research
results, however, either did not exist, did not provide funding at all, did not provide
funding to individuals, or only provided funding to individuals within a very
limited geographical area for which the applicant was ineligible. Tr. 253-56, 297-
99 (App.__ -, - );PX28117-8 (App.__-_); PX 60 (App._); PX 112
(App._ ); PX 113 (App. _); PX 114 (App._); PX 115 (App._ ); PX 3515
(App._); PX 150 at 83-84 (App.__ - ); PX 151 at 126-27 (App.__-_ ). Chapman
learned about two funders who asked the Kansas defendants to remove their names
from lists provided to consumers after the funders complained about the large
number of requests from individuals who did not qualify for their grants. Tr. 255-
56, 302 (App._ -, ); PX 114 (App._); PX 115 (App._ ).

Chapman often included non-grant sources of funding — such as loans,
sweepstakes, contests, entitlement programs, and “assistance programs” — in the
research results, even though the customer only requested grants. There is no
evidence that any customer received funds from these other sources. Tr. 132-34,

138-41, 199-93, 195-98, 202-04 (App.__ -, - . - ., - . - ) PX

10
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150 at 61, 146-47 (App.__, - _); D.338 264 (App._); PX 100 11158-159
(App._); PX 24 15 (App._); PX 24, EX. 3 (App.__-_); PX 28 14 (App.__-_);
PX 28 Ex. C, p.16-29 (App.__ - ); PX 29 Ex. 2, p.10-27 (App.__-_); PX 35 16,
Ex. 4, p.10-20 (App.__ - ); PX 58 at 8-22 (App.__ - ); PX 60 at 3-11 (App.__-
__); PX61at8-19 (App._ - ); PX 102 (App._ ); DX 704 at 3-22 (App.__-_);
D.156 at 41-42 (App.__- ). Chapman developed the idea to include contests,
sweepstakes, and other non-grant sources in the research results, and she prepared
an explanation to the Kansas defendants about why these other sources should be
included, understanding that they would provide that information to their
customers. Tr. 221-22, 266-67 (App.__ -, - ); PX 121 (App._ - ); D.338
1123 (App._ - ); PX 150 at 178-79 (App.__-_); PX 100 11160-61 (App._ ).
For example, Chapman proposed informing customers that the “new trend” is that
contests and sweepstakes “are all considered grants!” PX 121 (App._ ).
Chapman’s research regarding the supposed availability of grants for
individuals typically consisted of looking at the funder’s website or the IRS Form

990 filed by private foundations. Tr. 177-179, 249-50, 302-06 (App._ - , -

_ - );DX 711 (App._ - ); DX 712 (App._ - ); DX 713 (App._ - ).
Chapman acknowledged, however, that information included on the Form 990
could be out-of-date when it became publicly available for grant research over a
year later. Tr. 305, 325-26 (App.__, - ). By April 2008 she began

occasionally contacting funders directly to determine if there were additional grant

11
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Consumers were initially charged $805, and later up to $1200, by the Kansas
defendants for Chapman’s services. Tr. 69-70, 318 (App.__ - , _ ). Consumers
paid between $6.7 million and $9.7 million to receive Chapman’s work. Tr. 70-71
(App.__-_).

Chapman also provided grant writing and coaching services for the Kansas
defendants. Beginning in approximately October 2008, Chapman or her
employees provided proposals and applications on behalf of customers to the
ostensible funding sources previously identified. Tr. 287, 309-10 (App.__, - );
PX 150 at 141-43 (App.__-_); D.338 9117, 118 (App.__-_); D.296 117, 91,
98,102 (App.__, - ). She provided to the Kansas defendants a bullet point list
of the purported benefits of using a grant writer, which was used to induce
customers to hire them as grant writers. Tr. 223-24, 263 (App.__ -, ); D.338
125 (App._ ); PX 150 at 182-83 (App.__ - ); PX 122 (App.__ ). Chapman
received $300 for the first 5 pages of grant writing and $35 for each additional
page. Tr. 147 (App._); PX 150 at 211 (App._ ); D.234 154 (App.__). Chapman

also created a grant coaching workshop and program for the Kansas defendants

beginning in the summer of 2008. Tr. 147-48, 245-46 (App.__ -, - );PX 150
at 43-46, 87 (App.__ -, ); D.296 1198, 102 (App._ - ); D.338 1127, 117,
119 (App.__ -, - );PX 100 19176-177, 181-182 (App.__-_); PX 149
(App.__-_).

13
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(either directly or through MCA) received $1,682,950 from the Kansas defendants
for providing grant-related services to individual customers of the Kansas, North
Carolina, or Utah defendants from January 2008 through July 2009. D.338 at
1938, 275 (App.__, _); PX 110 (App.__ - ); PX 111 (App.__ - ).

3. Chapman knew or consciously avoided knowing that the Kansas
defendants deceptively sold their grant-related services

Chapman knew that the Kansas defendants engaged in telemarketing, and
knew that their sales force represented to customers that they were likely to receive
grant money as a result of purchasing defendants’ grant-related services. D.296
1103 (App._ ); PX 150 at 28 (App._ ); PX 100 113 (App._ ); D.216 147
(App._); D.234 147 (App.__-_ ). Chapman also knew by 2008 that the Kansas
defendants were selling the Grant Guide to individuals and that the Grant Guide
represented that “historically the grant writers have been able to produce a 70
percent success rate in receiving grant funding” for their customers. Tr. 263-64,
284-87 (App.__ -, - );PXT7at3(App._); PX150at 184 (App._ ).
Chapman acknowledged, however, that grants cannot be guaranteed. D.338 1250
(App._); PX 100 123 (App._).

Prior to performing services for the Kansas defendants in late 2007,
Chapman had not researched grants for individuals as her previous experience was

limited to grant research and writing for schools and non-profit organizations.
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Tr. 238-40, 262 (App.__ -, ); D.338 1253 (App._ ); PX 150 at 35-36 (App.__-
__). She believed that no more than 2% of grants are available to individuals even
though she had no personal success obtaining grants for individuals and could not

independently verify that statistic. Tr. 226-27, 262 (App.__ -, ); PX 150 at 78-
79,82-83 (App.__ -, - );PX108 (App. - ).

Chapman also knew about inquiries by several state attorneys general
regarding the Kansas defendants’ business practices from the beginning of her
working relationship with them. PX 150 at 173-74, 194-96 (App._ - , - );
PX 100 1129-31 (App. - ); D.296 1104 (App._ ); PX 113 (App._ ). She
assisted the Kansas defendants by responding to inquiries from the North Carolina

Attorney General and the Alaska Attorney
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more even though she knew many of the customers had large debts and that
government websites provided information about the availability of grants for free.
Tr. 302, 311-12, 318 (App.__, -, ); DX 736 (App._); DX 737 (App._ ).

Paeno decided in the summer of 2008 to quit working for the Kansas
defendants because she found the business of providing grant research for
individuals to be too difficult compared to that for school and nonprofit grants. PX
160 at 67-68 (App.__ - ). When Chapman told Paeno she would continue, Paeno
told Chapman that she was sure the Kansas defendants would want her to continue,
but warned her to “keep on them [the Kansas defendants], make sure they’re not
marketing, you know, in a way that you’re getting these requests that are not
viable, ....” PX 160 at 68 (App._ ).

Chapman claimed she never reviewed the marketing materials,
telemarketing scripts, or recordings used by the Kansas defendants to induce
consumers to purchase her grant-related services. Tr. 230-31, 288, 290-91
(App.__ -, ., - );D.296 11106, 107 (App._); PX 150 at 58-59, 112-113
(App. _ -, - ). She could have received the Kansas defendants’ marketing
materials pursuant to their mutual nondisclosure agreement if she had simply
asked, but she did not. Tr. 278, 287 (App.__, _); PX 107 (App.__- ). Chapman
even claimed that, although she received a telemarketing script from Lynn Paeno

“in the very beginning” of her work with the Kansas defendants, she forwarded it
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to her business partner and then returned it to Paeno, without ever looking at the
script. Tr. 230-31, 282 (App.__ -, ); PX 150 at 58-59 (App.__ - ).

Chapman did not track whether any of the customers who purchased her
grant-related services ever received a grant. D.296 at 108 (App._ ); PX 150 at
151 (App.__); PX 100 1183 (App._ ). Chapman knew that the Kansas defendants
did not track whether any of their customers ever received a grant. PX 150 at 153
(App.__). Chapman was unaware of any of the 8,361 customers, for whom she or
MCA provided grant-related services, who received a grant. Tr. 262-63, 310-11
(App._-_,_-_).

4, Chapman continued to assist the telemarketing scheme even after

knowing that the Kansas defendants’ business had been shut
down

Although Chapman was not named a defendant in the originally filed
complaint in July 2009, she received notice of the filed complaint and the TRO that
was entered against the Kansas defendants and that closed their business. D.338
1276 (App._); D.1; D.28. Nonetheless, she failed to make any changes to her
business practices and continued to provide the same services for the Utah
defendants. Tr. 184-87, 313-15 (App._ -, - ); PX 150 at 207-11, 213, 242
(App.__ -, _,_);D.3389277-79 (App.__-_); D.296 1113, 114 (App._ ).

She did not review the marketing materials for the Utah defendants, and for at least

a year she did not track if any of their customers received a grant. D.338 11292-97
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(App.__-_); D.296 1115, 116 (App. _); PX 150 at 230-31, 246 (App.__ -, ).
After the Utah defendants were added as defendants, Chapman began providing the
same services on behalf of EMS, a company she knew was controlled by the
owners of a Utah defendant. Tr. 316-17 (App.__ - ); D.150 at 246-48 (App.__-
_); D.338 11 301, 302, 305 (App.__-_). Chapman did not review EMS’s
marketing materials. Tr. 316, 322 (App.__, _); D.338 11303, 304 (App._); PX
150 at 247-48 (App.__ - ).

5. Proceedings below

On July 20, 2009, plaintiffs the Commission, and the States of Kansas,
North Carolina, and Minnesota filed a 14-count complaint against defendants
Affiliate Strategies, Inc., Apex Holdings, International L.L.C., Answer Customers,
L.L.C., GWI, Landmark Publishing Group, L.L.C., Brett Blackman, Jordan Sevy,
and James Rulison (collectively, “the Kansas defendants”), and Real Estate Buyers
Financial Network, L.L.C. (“REBFN”), Martin Nossov, and Alicia Nossov
(collectively, “the North Carolina defendants”). D.1. The FTC initiated this action
under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 53(b) and 57b, and the
Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101-6108, for deceptive acts or practices that
violated Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and the TSR, 16 C.F.R.

Part 310. The states brought this action pursuant to the Telemarketing Act, 15
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U.S.C. 8§ 6101, et seq., and various state consumer protection and trade practices
laws. D.1.°

On July 24, 2009, the district court issued a TRO against the Kansas
defendants which, inter alia, prohibited their on-going misrepresentations,
appointed a Receiver, and imposed an asset freeze. D.28. On September 1, 2009,
the court entered a stipulated preliminary injunction. D.78.

On December 9, 2009, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint adding the
State of Illinois as plaintiff (alleging claims pursuant to the Illinois Consumer
Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS 505/2 et seq.), adding
Wealth Power Systems, L.L.C. (“WPS”), Aria Financial L.L.C. (“Aria”), Direct
Marketing Systems, Inc., and Justin Ely (collectively, “the Utah defendants”), and
Chapman as defendants, and adding several new counts. D.118 (App._ ).
Chapman was charged with assisting and facilitating the Kansas defendants” TSR
violations under 16 C.F.R. 310.3(b). Id. 175-76 (App.__). Plaintiffs filed a

second amended complaint on June 21, 2010. D.216 (App._ ).

* The State of Kansas brought this suit under the Kansas Consumer
Protection Act, K.S.A. 8 50-623, et seq. The State of Minnesota brought this suit
under Minn. Stat. 88 8.01 & 8.31, the Minnesota Uniform Deceptive Trade
Practices Act, Minn. Stat. 88 325D.43-325D.48, Minn. Stat. § 325F.67, the
Minnesota Prevention of Consumer Fraud Act, Minn. Stat. 8§ 325F.68-325F.70,
and Minn. Stat. § 325F.71, subd. 2 (2008). The State of North Carolina brought
this suit under the North Carolina Unfair and Deceptive Trade Practices Act, N.C.
Gen. Stat. 8§ 75-1.1, et seq.
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Defaults were entered against the Kansas corporate defendants on
August 12, 2010, and a default judgment and permanent injunction were entered
against those defendants a